DE-PS36-04GO94025

Amendment No. 002


DATE:

November 3, 2004
FROM:
Mary Hartford, Contracting Officer

TO:

All Prospective Applicants

SUBJECT:
Amendment No. 002 to Announcement No. DE-PS36-04GO94025, “University Research in Biomass Technologies:  Basic and Applied Understanding of Biomass Conversion and Processing for Fuels, Chemicals/Materials and Heat & Power”
The Purpose of this Amendment is to address questions sent to the E-mail box and respond to those questions in a format that all prospective applicants can review.
Questions and answers for DE-PS36-04GO94025

	Question
	Response

	I have an idea of using wasted biomass as a source of methane.  However, I do not think that I can pull a consortium together this year.  With that, is the referenced RFP a typical one from year to year?
	See IIPs answers to Question

	I am trying to put together a consortium. I have a question regarding the 20% non-federal match. Is it supposed to be from the participating industry or the universities or a combination of all? Can soft-money (e.g. faculty salary in terms of release time) be counted towards this?
	Allowable costs for Universities are found in OMB Circular A-21.

Cost Share is so either industry, university, or both can contribute- 20% from any non-federal source.

Further information on allowable cost share can be found in Federal Regulations:

http://www.access.gpo.gov/nara/cfr/waisidx_04/10cfr600_04.html
 

Title 10 Part 600 under cost sharing.  In-Kind contributions, which can include time contributions.

	We have a consortium of multiple universities, companies, and at least one national lab that has interest in collaborating on this effort. One thing in the NOFA I wanted to check on was the sentence in the first section that says "Applicants proposing research involving biodiesel production and testing will also be considered non-responsive". 

 I just wanted to verify that this refers to projects that specifically focus on biodiesel production and testing, and does not mean that any project related to biodiesel will be considered non-responsive. Is that the case? Our project focuses on a novel process for growing high oil algaes on waste streams for yielding very large quantities of oil, as well as considerable efficiency improvements in the "feedstock interface for biomass processing" (Area of interest 1). The project would not include funding for work on biodiesel production or testing itself, but I 

wanted to make sure that the clause in the NOFA only applies to projects focusing on those, and not on all biodiesel projects in general.
	It is correct that area 1 can encompass all sources of bio-based feedstocks as delivered to a plant gate. Plant based oils would not be excluded. The other areas outlined in the announcement will provide you with the areas in which there is the most interest in using the bio-based feedstocks.  Applications involving production and evaluation of biodiesel fuels are not responsive. 

This announcement has specific desired outcomes as explained in appendix C and these are reflective of the programmatic decision by DOE to not be involved in feedstock development R&D.

	I am inquiring about the grant opportunity DE-PS36-04GO94025. I work for the University of Florida as an Extension Forester in the panhandle of Florida. As you know we recently experienced several hurricanes that devastated our private forest lands. I am looking at trying to utilize approximately 2,000,000 acres of damaged timberland that is virtually unsalable as traditional timber products. I am interested in obtaining a grant to develop a system to utilize this timber and process the raw material into pellet form to be used to generate electricity or as a biomass fuel to heat and air-condition businesses and large residential subdivisions.

 

Is this idea in the scope of the grant. I know time is limited to get this grant submitted. 
	Your stated interest is beyond the scope of this announcement. 

 

For your information, there are other efforts within the U. S. Forest Service to look at similar problems with Western US forests to ameliorate fire dangers.  The Forest Products Laboratory in Madison, Wisconsin has been managing many of these efforts. You may wish to contact FPL and determine if there are opportunities there.




	We understand that a consortium consisting of four universities and an industry partner are required.  Please let us know if each of the four universities has to be from a different state (spread out over the U.S.) or can more than one be from California.  Also please note that the University of California has a number of major campuses (UC Irvine, UC LA, UC San Diego, UC Berkley etc.) with each involved independently in major research programs.  Can each of these campuses be treated as a separate "university" to make up the four universities?
	Yes, the different campuses can be treated as separate universities for the purposes of this solicitation. 

 


	A letter of intent is required by this Thursday.  We are working with entities interested in pursuing this and have asked for our help (my office represents many livestock and poultry associations and companies interested in Biomass and renewable energy opportunities).  We have worked on a few DOE opportunities before, but have never been required to submit a letter of intent.  Can you guide us on what would be included in this letter?  How long should it be?  If there is a standard we can use as a model, would you mind pointing us in the right direction?
	Applicants are requested to submit a letter of intent by September 22, 2004 (revised to October 6, 2004).  This letter should include the name of the applicant, the title of the project, the name of the Principal Investigator(s)/project director, the amount of funds requested, and a one-page abstract.  Letters of intent will be used to organize and expedite the merit review process.  Failure to submit such letters will not negatively effect a responsive application submitted in a timely fashion.  

	Thanks for the info on the DOE Biomass Proposal Deadlines. 

Unfortunately, however, it came to me on October 7, when the deadline for the Letters of Intent due date had changed to October 6, 2004 (the same day the email was sent). Is there a way to submit such letter on a latter date?
	You may still send a letter of intent because it is not a mandatory letter. It simply lets DOE know the volume of applications we might receive so that we can do the best job possible reviewing applications.

	I represent a consortium of four universities. We are considering submitting to this program. I understand we need to have 20% match.  Can any of the match be from federal sources?   Can you give me any additional directive on what is permissible for match?
	Matches cannot be from other federal sources.  Matches can come from third party contributions, cash or in-kind contributions.  See Federal Financial Assistance Regulation 10 CFR 600.123 for further clarification.

	Will wood be acceptable as a feedstock for the current RFP, University Research in Biomass Technologies: Basic and Applied Understanding of Biomass Conversion and Processing for Fuels, Chemicals/Materials and Heat & Power?  The reason I ask the question is that it seems like the only agriculture feedstocks, such as corn, etc have been funded over the past several RFPs?  It is difficult to keep university faculty/researchers focused on responding if they feel there is no chance.
	There is no exclusion of wood as a feedstock of interest for this FOA.  With the new forest biorefinery efforts, there is probably an increase in the interest in wood even though most recent awards have been to agriculture processors.  Part of the program policy factors include "relative value to addressing programmatic needs within the Office of Biomass Program."  Selections are based on quality and the ability to address the criteria, hence wood-based R&D could be an area of consideration as well.

	I am in the process of starting up a vintage parlor coach traveling museum nostalgic tour bus service in New Mexico and will be operating my antique coaches on 100% biodiesel. I discovered the grant funding opportunity # DE-PS36-04GO94025 CFDA# 81.087 while searching for possible partial funding sources. Restoration alone will require $200,000 per coach. I have a professional architecture degree and a love of old buses but have never experienced the grants process. I've attached a letter concerning what I am doing and a copy of my brochure cover. The parlor coaches I will use are very high profile and attention getters. It would seem to me they could be an asset to the biodiesel industry in adapting an older technology to modern green fuel useage.
	From the FOA, the following is noted:  “Responses proposing research involving biodiesel production and testing will also be considered non-responsive” This includes testing of use in any type of vehicle for any application. This particular application is outside the scope of this FOA.

	Please send me instructions for the letter of intent
	The information is located in the funding opportunity announcement itself under Part IV. Application and Submission Information, Paragraph B, titled Letter of Intent.

	I am doing some research on the University Research in Biomass Technologies grants program (CFDA #: 81.087) and I wanted to verify some information about the program.

1.) The RFA states that there is a 20% match fund requirement for this program.  Is a cash or in-kind match more preferable? Also, if an applicant provides a match greater than 20%, would this benefit the applicant during the evaluation process?

2.) Other than the requirements specified in the RFA, is there a certain type of applicant that is typically more competitive than other applicants?  

3.) Is this a new program? If not, is there a list of prior awardees available?


	1)  Cost share can be in-kind, cash, or a combination of both.  Your decision as to how you will meet the minimum cost share requirement.  

2)  Criterion 4 within the announcement outlines the need for an applicant to explain the quality and type of team that will be assembled to meet project objectives against the goals of the announcement.  In this particular case, an institution of higher education that possesses graduate programs in scientific and engineering programs is the target audience.  

3)  This is a new program within the Office of the Biomass Program at the Department of Energy HQ.  Therefore there are no lists of prior awardees.  However, a consortium of universities did apply to a different, broad agency funding opportunity announcement in FY03 and were successful in winning an award.  It was lead by Dr. Charles Wyman of Dartmouth University.     



	I have been developing a new business concept that I believe qualifies for exactly that which this grant opportunity is working towards.  It also ties in recovery from the hurricane damage caused by the numerous storms that hit the east coast this past year. While I recognize that this funding opportunity is oriented more towards research and development of biomass utilization for energy and fuels, heat and power, my idea contributes to those focuses on different fronts.  A brief synopsis of my idea is taking the damaged trees and tree wastes, converting them to useful materials for building, fuel energy, and nutrient restoration for the soils. I am very much interested in competing for a grant, but have never made the attempt due to lack of knowledge on how the operation works or the necessary steps involved in obtaining the grant funding process. Would it be too much to ask for your guidance on this, or ask you to point me in the right direction to achieve this?


	There are two types of financial assistance awards that are given by the DOE; grants and cooperative agreements.  The Federal Financial Assistance Regulations for DOE is 10 CFR 600.  The regulation is separated by various parts depending on whether you are a for-profit, educational institution, non-profit, etc.  Here is a website that will provide you access to the regulation:  http://procurement.go.doe.gov/Regs%20and%20Other%20Stuff/10CFR600/10CFR600%20Index.htm
When a requirement exists for the Department of Energy, an announcement in Fed Biz Ops through the Industry Inter-Active Procurement System (IIPS) is posted.  IIPS is the electronic format for all announcements and applications for DOE.  You do not need to be registered in IIPS to browse opportunities.  However if you wish to submit an application you must be registered in IIPS.  The website for IIPS is:  http://e-center.doe.gov.  There will be a menu on the left hand side of the screen.  Choose according to your needs.  You will need to register in IIPS if you plan to submit an application under this announcement number.  You do not need to be registered to browse the announcement and all questions and answers, amendments, etc to date.  To browse click on browse (left side of screen) and this will bring up information on the right side of the screen.  Click on Financial Assistance.  This will bring up a screen with various contracting activities.  Click on the Golden Field Office.  This will bring up another screen.  Scroll down to the announcement number and click on the document.  It will pull up a general synopsis of the announcement.  Scroll to the bottom of the screen and click on the announcement under attachments.  This will take you to the full announcement where you will have all of the links to the forms as well as the requirements identified for this announcement.

If you care to view any amendments or special contracting officer announcements on this award, go back in the system to the announcement number and click on the file folder next to it.

Once applications are received, a panel of experts review the applications for technical merit and score it in accordance with the criteria in the announcement.  Recommendations are made to the Selection Official.  The Selection Official notifies the Contracting Officer or those selected for negotiation of an award.  Upon completion of negotiations of those selected an award is made.  This is a brief summary of the process.  I hope this helps.

	
	

	What are the Overhead or Indirect costs allowed by DOE to the lead institution and to the subcontracted institutions submitting proposals under this RFP?  Can the lead institution add indirect costs to the entire award and the subcontracting institutions again add indirect costs to the funding allocated to them?
	For Guidelines concerning allowable costs for Universities are found in OMB Circular A-21. 

The answer to your second question depends upon how the lead institution applies its indirect base and/or whether the subs are applying their indirects as cost share.  I suggest you contact your university financial and accounting office for assistance in preparing your budget for this announcement.  

	We are hoping to submit an application for the University Research in Biomass Technologies grant.  I have a couple of questions, if you will:

 

1 – Did we need to submit a letter of intent by 9/22 in order to apply for the grant?  We just learned about it this week.

2 – Can we propose work for more than one of the 5 topics of interest listed in the funding opportunity?

3 – Can we propose work for 2 types of feedstocks under one of the topics listed?


	1. Letters of Intent are due by COB Sept 30, 2003 (revised to Oct 6, 2003).  However if you did not submit a letter of intent, that does not exclude you from submitting an application.  The letter of intent is to help the Government understand who is interested and how many reviewers we should anticipate when applications are received.  Because we use reviewers from other locations as well as GO, this helps us plan the logistics of the merit review process.
2. It is possible to submit an application that crosses over into more than one topic.  It is also possible to submit an application for areas other than those shown, however, the topics in this Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) were chosen to match the needs described within the multiyear technical plan (MYTP).  The Office of Biomass Program does not anticipate supporting work that falls outside the general scope of the MYTP.  In addition, please note the specific exclusion of any work related to the production of biodiesel or testing of biodiesel in engines. 

3. This is acceptable.  As noted within the FOA description, the Department of Energy (DOE) is looking for analysis by institutions of higher learning into where they see R&D needs to occur to further program goals and objectives.  The expectation is that work will be proposed in basic and applied areas relating to the conversion of biomass into fuels, chemicals/materials and heat and power.  Again, there are exclusions that render an application non-responsive and an applicant needs to be aware of those that are described both in the Description and in Appendix C. 

	We have not sent a letter of intent because we had no confirmation from our industry partner. Now we have it. Can we apply for the University solicitation without it?
	Yes

	My Current interests for the PhD program are, increased biofuel production from renewable sources

(i.e.) oil seeds such as Jatropha, rape seed, Pongamia, and wood ethanol from trees such as Acacia

mangium using biotechnological applications.

As I have already carried out an independent research work in the in vitro propagation of Acacia mangium, I would like to continue with the same species in my PhD

program too.   

I am very eager to know, if any funding or financial assistance will be provided to me to continue my research work.
	This specific announcement has a focus on the delivery of biomass feedstock to the plant gate and overall conversion processes from the biomass feedstock source to the end use such as fuels, chemicals & materials, and heat & power. The DOE Office of Biomass Program does not have a focus in any feedstock development efforts. In particular, the program is not interested in participating in production and testing of biodiesel fuels. Also, the guidelines for this announcement clearly ask for applications from consortia of four universities rather than single investigators. If you wish to pursue your specific efforts, the United States Department of Agriculture is probably a more likely resource. Their Cooperative States Research programs are best suited for the interests you describe (URL is http://www.csrees.usda.gov/)



	
	


All other parts of the Announcement remain unchanged.
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